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INTRODUCTION

The house at 14120 Miranda Road in Los Altos Hills is named after its first
owner, Charles Henry Blake, who commissioned its construction and lived in it
some 15 years. The house was designed by Henry H. Gutterson, a noted San
Francisco and Berkeley architect. It was built in 1920 on a 13-acre lot which Blake
used as an orchard. After Blake’s death the house was owned successively by
Maurice and Bertha Roos (1940-1943), Hazel S. Dey (1943-1953), Victor and
Minnie Giusti (1953-1959), William F. Whitmore (1959-1993), and George and
Elizabeth Still (1993 to the present).

BACKGROUND

At the time the Blake House was built, it was out in the country, and there
was no such community as Los Altos Hills. The Santa Clara Valley seemed the
largest orchard in the world, all composed of small family farms.

Ohlone Indians were the valley’s first inhabitants, and in 1840 one of them,
Jose Gorgonio, received a grant of Rancho la Purissima Concepcion, the land that
became Los Altos Hills. As early as 1828 Mission Santa Clara’s cattle had grazed
there. Gorgonio, a skilled mason and former Mission neophyte, used his 4,436
acres to raise cattle, wheat, corn and vegetables, and for his family’s home.

In 1847 Gorgonio sold Rancho la Purissima Concepcion to Juana Briones,
daughter of a Mexican soldier. She was a midwife and nurse/doctor, and she
carried on important businesses. In 1855 she leased most of this rancho to Martin
Murphy, Jr. for grazing cattle.

Born in Ireland in 1807, Murphy had followed his father’s family to Quebec
in 1828, and later to Missouri. In 1843 three generations of the Murphy family
joined Captain Stevens’ 13-wagon party in crossing the continent to California.
Martin Murphy Jr. initially settled on a farm near the present Stockton, and in 1850
he moved his growing family to a ranch that became Sunnyvale.

The Murphys never lived on Rancho Purissima Concepcion, but they bought
it in 1871 and gave 2800 acres of it to their daughter Elizabeth, the first American
child born in California. It was a present for her wedding to William Taaffe. After
giving birth to four children, Elizabeth died in 1875, and her land reverted to her
parents, who brought up her children.

The four Taaffe children were given 2600 acres of Purissima Concepcion in
1883, and the second son moved there with his bride in 1888. Their land
extended westward from Adobe Creek. In 1891 it was divided into four lots,



numbered from west to east. Lot 4, of 703 acres, contained what was to become
14120 Miranda Road. Moody Road and Arastradero Road already existed at the
time of this division, but the land must have been largely vacant. Usually
subdivisions were undertaken in order to sell land for future development. Such
large parcels as these must have been intended for agricultural use.

In 1897 the Taaffe twin daughters Mary and Miranda had Lot 4 divided into
some 45 parcels. The subdivision map showed the existence or expectation of
Fremont, Paloma, Robleda, Edith, and Miranda, all called ‘avenues.” The future
14120 Miranda Road was in Lot 35, consisting of 13.07 acres from an "iron pipe"
at the intersection of Fremont and Miranda, all the way to Adobe Creek.

Meanwhile, the more level portions of the Santa Clara Valley were turning
into orchards. The first one had been planted by Indians for the Santa Clara
Mission. In the 1850s fruit and grape cuttings began to come from eastern United
States and from Europe. The Santa Clara Valley was found ideal for them because
of its climate and soil, and its proximity to the eager consumers of San Francisco.
Experimentation with and development of new varieties of fruits took place in the
second half of the 19th century. The bing cherry, for instance, was developed,
and the Pellier prune.

After a ten-acre unirrigated prune orchard on Stevens Creek Road yielded an
income of $2500 in 1881, many large-scale orchards were planted. Former grain
fields were subdivided for family-sized orchards all over the valley and increasingly
up into the hills. Drying the fruit extended marketing possibilities.

Technology encouraging the growth of orchards was the development of
drying machinery to supersede the old method of laying the fruit out on screens for
sun drying, which might be accompanied by mold and unsanitary tree or animal
droppings. A mechanical dehydrator run on gasoline was developed in 1919 by
Los Gatos inventor Romolo Puccinelli and U.C. Davis professor A.W. Christie.

By 1925 125,000 acres of orchards and vineyards filled the valley between
the Santa Cruz Mountains and the Diablo Range. Prunes were the favorite crop,
but there were also apricots, cherries, and others. In springtime the valley was a
wonderfully cheering carpet of blossoming trees.

With the Second World War came Moffitt Field, war industries, and people
coming from other parts of the country to work there. After the war had shown
the charms of California, the population continued to increase, and orchards were
sold off to become subdivisions of tract housing. The community of Los Altos Hills
was incorporated in 1956. The computer revolution and the prosperity of Silicon
Valley closed the final chapter of the orchards. Only a few scattered trees remain.



CONSTRUCTION OF THE HOUSE

Before 1914 the Folk family acquired Lot 35 of the M & M Taaffe
Subdivision. They may have planted an orchard. In any case, they sold the lot to
Charles Henry Blake, and recorded the deed on the 20th of April 1920. At the
same time Blake also bought, from one Bertha Meyer, parts of Lots 38 and 39,
which were across Miranda Avenue from Lot 35.

At the end of August, 1920, Blake contracted with John Morton for a "one-
story frame and plaster nine-room residence, garage and tank house" to be built in
Los Altos to designs by H. H. Gutterson. The cost was not given immediately.

A year later, on the 24th of August 1921, Charles Blake filed a Notice of
Completion, stating that he accepted the finished buildings that Morton had
constructed, and he was ready to pay for them.

John J. Morton was an experienced San Francisco carpenter and contractor.
Researcher Gary Goss reports that Morton was architect Gutterson’s contractor of
choice for many residences in San Francisco’s St. Francis Wood.

The architect Henry Higby Gutterson was born in Owatonna, Minnesota in
1884 and graduated in architecture from the University of California at Berkeley in
1906. He furthered his education with three years at the then-preeminent Ecole
des Beaux Arts in Paris. Before setting up his own office in 1913, he worked in
turn for Daniel H. Burnham, Willis Polk, and John Galen Howard. He designed
more than 60 houses in Berkeley, and his church work there includes the education
building alongside Maybeck’s famed Christian Science Church. He was supervising
architect for the St. Francis Wood development from 1914 until his death in San
Francisco in 1954.

Gutterson is considered one of the spiritual heirs of the Bay Area Tradition
founders, Bernard Maybeck, Willis Polk, and Ernest Coxhead. Architectural
historians discuss him along with Julia Morgan, John Hudson Thomas, Clarence
Tantau, Hugh Comstock, W. R. Yelland, and Walter Ratcliff. He worked sometimes
in the Arts and Crafts mode, sometimes with Medieval images of the Cotswold
cottage or the Norman French farmhouse, and later with Hispanic idioms. His
houses were often purposely low-key, but on inspection revealing complex forms
and spaces, and manipulating rather than copying historic ideas. He also liked to
exploit the site as a major ingredient in creating an aura, as he did so successfully
with the Blake House.



DESCRIPTION OF THE HOUSE

The Charles H. Blake House at 14120 Miranda Road is a single story, wood
frame house built on a plan shaped like an H. It is sited at the top of a rise, with
views over the Santa Clara Valley to east, south and southwest.

A generalized Hispanic style results from the house’s plain stucco exterior
walls, its arches, and its patios. A mildly Medieval flavor is invoked by its oversize
fireplace, the column capitals, and the arched dining room ceiling. Arts and Crafts
elements include the wrought iron decorations, the shaped beam ends, and the
shell design over the built-in sideboard.

Gutterson ably blended these seemingly disparate elements into a quiet
whole which takes advantage of the view possibilities, has a sensible floor plan,
and lightens every room, often with windows on two sides.

THE ORIGINAL OWNER

Charles H. Blake and his family lived in this house from its construction in
1920-1921 until his death on the 8th of September 1936. His life history is
elusive because Bay Area directories and archives scarcely note his existence. He
was listed in local directories as an-"orchardist," like many others in the area. With
about 20 acres at his disposal, he certainly grew some kind or kinds of fruit, in
addition to a garden around the house. He called the place Sunnyhill Farm.

However Blake was by no means a subsistence farmer. The house that he
ordered constructed as soon as he bought the property must have been costly.
Surely a San Francisco architect of the first rank, and a San Francisco contractor to
carry out the designs, were considerably above the level of pure necessity. The
site was probably chosen more for its beauty and views than for ease in farming.

Blake was probably what the English might call a gentleman farmer. For the
years 1925 and 1926 he was listed in San Francisco directories as president of the
International Securities Corporation. He probably had made a fortune somewhere
outside the San Francisco Bay Area and was creating this place as his vacation or
retirement home. He was not a young man in 1920, for by his death sixteen years
later he was a grandfather.

Blake’s estate, which was administered by his daughter, consisted of
Sunnyhill Farm and some securities, altogether valued at $73,685.61 . The heirs
were his widow Cecelia L. Blake, their daughter Louise Blake Smith, the
granddaughter Cecelia Louise Smith, and Blake’s brother William of New York.
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LATER OWNERS

Sunnyhill Farm was distributed at the beginning of July 1937 by Charles
Blake’s estate to his widow Cecelia (sometimes Celia) L. Blake. A month and a
half later she deeded the property to the daughter Louise Blake Smith. The mother,
daughter and granddaughter were then living at the Huntington Hotel on Nob Hill in
San Francisco.

In 1940 Louise Blake Smith sold the "farm" to Maurice and Bertha Roos,
who kept it for three years.

Hazel Sobey Dey bought the property (minus 1% acres) in 1943 and sold it
in 1953. She was the wife (later widow) of Benjamin Clifford Dey, an attorney.
He was a native of Oregon City, Oregon, who graduated from the Stanford law
department in 1905 and went to work for a Southern Pacific Railroad attorney at
the beginning of 1906. He married Hazel Sobey of San Francisco in 1911. In
1916 Dey became counsel for the railroad’s business in all of Oregon. At the
beginning of 1930 he took over as head of Southern Pacific’s entire legal
department, and his headquarters moved to New York City.

The Deys evidently bought the Los Altos Hills property as a vacation retreat
and retirement house. Ben retired at the end of 1948 and died some time before
Hazel sold the property in 1953. Their son Benjamin C. Dey Jr. died at the age of
32 while flying a small plane from Reno to the Peninsula. It crashed on a slope of
Donner summit during a snowstorm, narrowly missing the terminal of a ski lift. His
widow, the former Dorothy Brookman, later married someone named Sanford. Ben
and Hazel Dey’s daughter Marilyn married Charles Lewis Prince in 1947.

The buyers in 1953 were Victor E. Giusti, an unmarried man, and Minnie L.
Giusti, a widow and probably his mother. We can assume they lived in the Blake
House. In 1956 they recorded a subdivision map for "Acacia Acres," which
divided the reduced Lot 35 of the M & M Taaffe subdivision into ten parcels, with
lot lines similar to the present ones. This subdivision created a block-long dead end
street they called Giusti Court but is now Seven Acres Lane. The Giustis retained
ownership of 14120 Miranda Road.

In 1959 William F. Whitmore and his wife bought 14120 Miranda Road from
Victor Giusti and the estate of Minnie. They lived here and put the property in
trust for their children Edward, Thomas and Peter. In 1993 it was sold to the
Stills, the present owners.



1840, June 30

1844, Oct. 30

1854, Apr. 11

1855, Oct. 9

1863, Jan. 29

1871, July 19

c.1871

c.1875

1883, Feb. 13

1891, Oct. 1

1897, July 15

1914

PARTIAL CHAIN OF TITLE

Grant: Rancho La Purissima Concepcion, Gov. Alvarado to José

Gorgonio, an Ohlone Indian, and his son José Ramon (from Fava,
Los Altos Hills, p. 28)

Grant: Rancho La Purissima Concepcion, José Gorgonio and
son to Juana Briones de Miranda (from Fava, p. 29)

Decree: Rancho La Purissima Concepcion, U.S. Land
Commission to Juana Briones (from Fava, p. 31)

Lease: Rancho La Purissima Concepcion, Juana Briones to
Martin Murphy Jr. (from Fava, p. 49)

Patent: Rancho La Purissima Concepcion, 4,436 acres, U.S.A.
to Juana Briones (from Fava, p. 31)

Deed: Rancho La Purissima Concepcion, Juana Briones to
Martin Murphy Jr. (from Map Book C, page 119)

Gift: 2800 acres of Rancho La Purissima Concepcion, Martin

Murphy Jr. to daughter Elizabeth Yuba Martin Taaffe (from Fava,
pages 47, 50)

Probable deed: 2800 acres, estate of the late Elizabeth Taaffe
to her parents, Mary and Martin Murphy Jr. (from Fava, p. 50)

Deed of gift: 2600 acres, Mary and Martin Murphy Jr. to
William F. Taaffe, Martin |. Taaffe, Mary Taaffe, and Matilda
Taaffe (from Fava, p. 51)

Map recorded: "Partition of the Taaffe Tract," 14120 Miranda
Road being in its Lot 4, which is 703 acres (from Map Book C, p.
119)

Map recorded: "Mlary] and M[atilda] Taaffe’s Subdivision of
Lot 4 of the Taaffe Partition," 14120 Miranda Road being in Lot
35, which is 13.07 acres (from Map Book |, p. 72-73)

Official Map of Santa Clara County: Lots 35, 37 (up Miranda

Road) and 38 (across Miranda Road) owned by N. Folk (from J.G.
McMillan, "Map of Santa Clara County, California")
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1920, Apr.20

1921, Aug. 24

1937, July 2

1937, Aug. 19

1940, July 25

1943, Mar. 16

1953, Apr. 7

1956, Oct. 31

1959, Aug. 5

1993, Sept. 1

Deed: Lot 35, Mary Folk and husband B.W. Folk to Charles
Henry Blake (from Deeds Book 507, p. 519)

Notice of Completion: Charles H. Blake to John Morton (from
Recorder’s General Index, vol. 114)

Decree of Distribution: Lot 35 and portions of lots 38 and 39
(across Miranda Road), estate of the late Charles Blake, by

executor Louise Blake Smith, to Cecelia L. Blake (from Official
Records Book 825, p. 540)

Deed, Lot 35 and portions of lots 38 and 39, Celia L. Blake to
Louise Blake Smith (from Official Records Book 839, page 293)

Deed, Lot 35, Louise Blake Smith to Maurice and Bertha Roos
(from Official Records Book 993, page 364)

Deed, 11.54 acres of lot 35, Maurice Roos and wife Bertha
Roos to Hazel S. Dey (from Official Records Book 1128, page 579)

Deed, 11.54 acres of lot 35, H.S. Dey, widow, to Victor E.
Giusti, an unmarried man, and Minnie L. Giusti, a widow (from
Official Records Book 2637, page 149)

Subdivision Map: Tract No. 1813, Acacia Acres, subdividing
lot 35 into ten parcels, filed by Victor E. and Minnie L. Giusti,
the present lot of 14120 Miranda Road being excluded from the
subdivision and owned then by Giusti (from Map Book 73, page 33)

Joint Tenancy Deed: 14120 Miranda Road, Victor E. Giusti and

estate of the late Minnie Giusti to W.F. Whitmore and his wife
(see Official Records Book 5404, pages 404 and 406)

Grant Deed: 14120 Miranda Road, William F. Whitmore as
trustee for Edward Kent Whitmore, Thomas Sherman Whitmore
and Peter Frederick Whitmore, to George J. Still Jr. and
Elizabeth V.B. Still (from Official Records M978, page 0456)
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